
City of South Pasadena 
 
Page 1  

 
 

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA 
FINANCE COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

Commissioners to participate via ZOOM 
Meeting ID: 932 5969 8172 

Password: 807590 
March 25, 2021, at 6:30 pm. 

CALL TO ORDER: Commission Chair Elsner 
 

ROLL CALL: Chair Elsner,  Vice Chair Choi, Commissioners 
Findley, Tao and Wood, and City Treasurer Pia 

 
COUNCIL LIAISON: Council Member, Jack Donovan  

 
STAFF PRESENT: Interim Assistant City Manager, Elaine Aguilar 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND ACCESSIBILITY 
 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 
2020, the Special Meeting of the Finance Commission for March 25, 2021 will be conducted 
remotely and held by video conference, beginning at 6:30 p.m. The Meeting will be broadcast 
live on the City's local cable channel and the City’s website at: 
(www.southpasadenaca.gov/financecommission). 

 
Please be advised that pursuant to the Executive Order, and to ensure the health and safety of 
the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, the Council 
Chambers will not be open for the meeting. Commissioners will be participating remotely and 
will not be physically present in the Council Chambers. 

 
If you would like to comment on an agenda item, or make a general public comment, members 
of the public may submit their comments in writing for Commission consideration, by 
emailing them to: fcpubliccomment@southpasadenaca.gov. 

 
Public Comments must be received by 6 p.m., March 24, 2021 to ensure adequate time to 
compile and post. Public Comment portion of the email is limited to 150 words. Please make 
sure to indicate: 1) your name; 2) what agenda item you are submitting public comment on, or 
if it is a general public comment; and 3) clearly state if you wish for your comment to be read. 

 
 
 
 

http://www.southpasadenaca.gov/financecommission
mailto:fcpubliccomment@southpasadenaca.gov


City of South Pasadena 
 
Page 2  

Regular Meeting Agenda       South Pasadena Finance Commission                 March 25, 2021 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Public Comments received by 6 p.m. March 24, 2021 will be read during this time, limited to 
150 words. Public comments received will be posted to the website and entered into the record 
of the meeting. 

 

1. Update Regarding City Financial Policy  
2. Finance Dept. Policy and Procedures Update, Enhanced Internal Controls 
3. Discussion Regarding Budget & CIP Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 
4. Financial Sustainability Plan Update  
5. Refinancing of City’s Water Bonds – awaiting information from the City’s Bond Financial Advisor  
6. Report from the Finance Ad Hoc Committee – Next Meeting March 31 or April 1, 2021 
7. Approval of Minutes from the March 4, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

FUTURE FINANCE COMMISSION MEETINGS 
April 29, 2021 Virtual Meeting 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO AGENDA DOCUMENTS 
Prior to meetings, agenda related documents are available for public inspection at, City Hall, 1414 
Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030. The complete agenda packet may also be viewed on 
the City’s website at: www.southpasadenaca.gov/financecommission 

 

ACCOMMODATIONS 
 

The City of South Pasadena wishes to make all of its public meetings accessible to the 
public. Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. If special assistance is 
needed to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk's Division at (626) 403-7230. 
Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons 
with disabilities. Hearing assistive devices are available in the Council Chamber. Notification 
at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements 
can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 

I declare under penalty of perjury that I posted this notice of agenda on the bulletin board in 
the courtyard of City Hall at 1414 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030, and on the City’s 
website as required by law. 

 
3/22/2021 
Date 

 
 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION 

http://www.southpasadenaca.gov/financecommission


 Finance Commission 
Agenda Report 
 

 
DATE:  March 25, 2021 
 
FROM:  Elaine Aguilar, Interim Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Update Regarding – City Financial Policies   
 (This Staff Report is for Items #1 & 2 on the agenda) 
 
 
Recommendation  
It is recommended that the Finance Commission receive this update, and provide preliminary 
direction, if desired.  This matter is also being reviewed by the Finance Ad Hoc Committee and 
will return to the Commission at a later date.  
 
Discussion/Analysis 
The City has embarked on the process of updating its financial policies and finance department 
procedures.  Significant progress has not been made due to the backlog of other important 
finance department projects such as completion of the Fiscal Year 2019 CAFR, completion of 
the Fiscal Year 2021 Budget, and the preparation of the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget, and the Fiscal 
Year 2020 CAFR.  Preparing two audits and two budgets in a single fiscal year takes a 
significant toll on staffing resources, and when combined with the impacts of the COVID 
pandemic on department operations, the toll is increased.  
 
Behind the scenes improvements have been accomplished and continue to be achieved, in the 
current fiscal year, including improved financial reporting and stronger controls over accounts 
payable and accounts receivables.  But these improvements won’t be visible, until the fiscal year 
concludes and the auditors audit FY 2021. Staff acknowledges that stronger, more contemporary 
written policies and procedures should also be developed.  It is going to take some time to 
complete a total top to bottom update (and in some instances creating new policies, where none 
currently exist) of all of the city’s finance department procedures.   The Ad Hoc Committee has 
just begun to broach the subject and will be continuing their work in this area.   



Financial Policy Discussion 
March 25, 2021  
Page 2 
 
 
The first suggested policy for review is the city’s overall financial policy that is included in the 
City’s Budget document and adopted each time the City’s budget is adopted.  Staff recommends 
this policy be the first to be considered, because it “sets the tone” for all other policies and 
provides high level guidance regarding important financial matters.   You will note that the 
Financial Policy is not a detailed “procedures manual”, instead it provides high level guidance 
and sets standards, goals and timelines.  The actual implementation of the Financial Policy 
should be more detailed procedures at the department level.   
 
A copy of the City’s current Financial Policy as included in the Proposed FY 2021 Budget is 
attached.  Staff has also attached a copy of the Financial Policy for the City of Irvine, a large 
city, and the City of San Marino, a city more similar to South Pasadena.    (You will note that 
San Marino has a Resolution, and a policy update.)    
 
This item is on the Commission’s agenda to allow time to develop an updated policy for the City 
Council as part of the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget process.  It is not envisioned that an updated 
policy will be created in a single meeting, but will take time over the next two months, working 
with the Finance Ad Hoc Commission.  However, initial thoughts to provide insight to the Ad 
Hoc Committee would be helpful, prior to the policy returning to the Commission.  It should also 
be mentioned that it may take more than one budget cycle to finally create the policy that 
addresses all concerns.  It is important to take the first step to improve what can be improved 
between now and June, when the budget is presented to the Commission, the City Council and 
the public.   
 
Background 
The staff report that accompanied the FY 2021 Proposed Budget to the City Council indicated 
the following, “Staff acknowledges that sections, such as the “Financial Policies” should be 
revamped to conform to today’s professional standards.  Given that there is only one quarter left 
in this fiscal year, staff will be working with the Finance Commission and the Finance Ad Hoc 
Committee to prepare updated Financial Policies to be included in the FY 2021/2022 Annual 
Budget. “  

Fiscal Impact 
This item allows the Finance Commission to comment on the development of the Financial 
Policy that goes into the annual budget each year.  There is no direct fiscal impact with revising 
and developing an updated policy, other than staff time.  
 
 
 
Public Notification of Agenda Item 
The public was made aware that this item was to be considered this evening by virtue of its 
inclusion on the legally publicly noticed agenda, posting of the same agenda and reports on the 
City’s website and/or notice in the South Pasadena Review and/or the Pasadena Star-News.  
 



Financial Policy Discussion 
March 25, 2021  
Page 3 
 
Attachments 

 
1. City of South Pasadena Financial Policy 
2. City of Irvine Financial Policy 
3. City of San Marino Financial Policy 

 
 

 



FY 2020/2021 Financial Policies 
Note: This Financial Policy has not been significantly altered from previous fiscal years.  It is 
acknowledged that these policies should be updated and strengthened to achieve maximum 
compliance with governmental budgeting guidelines, and to provide for strengthened controls, 
and additional transparency.  These policies will be revised and updated upon presentation in 
the FY 2021/2022 Budget.   
 
1. BALANCED BUDGET 
We will strive to maintain a balanced operating budget for all governmental funds (all funds 
except the enterprise funds), with total on-going revenues equal to or greater than total on-
going expenditure, so that at year end all these funds have a positive fund balance and the 
General Fund balance is maintained. 
 
The Adopted FY 2020/2021 Budget includes a balanced operating budget for some of the funds. 
The City’s General Fund is balanced.   
 
Exceptions to this policy include: 
Fund 103 – Insurance Fund  
Fund 201 – MTA Pedestrian Improvement Fund 
Fund 211 – CTC Traffic Improvement 
Fund 220 – Business Improvement Tax 
Fund 226 – Mission Meridian Public Garage 
Fund 232 – County Park Bond 
Fund 238 – MSRC Grant 
Fund 239 – Measure W 
Fund 241 – Measure H 
Fund 242 – Prop C Exchange 
Fund 245 – Bike and Pedestrian Paths 
Fund 248 – BTA Grants 
Fund 249 – Golden Streets Grant 
Fund 260 – CDBG 
Fund 274 – Homeland Security Grant Fund 277 – HSIP Grant 
Fund 310 – Sewer Capital Projects 
Fund 506 – SRF Loan 
 
The majority of these fund deficits will be resolved upon completion of the FY 2019/2020 Audit, 
or upon invoicing of grant funds.  Staff will resolve to promptly invoice granting agencies.  
 
The MTA Pedestrian Improvements Fund deficit is due to expenses that remain unreimbursed 
pending the resolution of funding for the Hook Ramp Rogan project.  The Mission Meridian 
Garage Fund does not have a significant revenue source at present, so it will continue to operate 
at a deficit.  The operational deficits in the County Park Bond Fund, BTA Grants Fund, Golden 
Streets Grant Fund, MSRC Grant, Homeland Security Grant Fund, Prop C Exchange Fund, and 
HSIP Grant, result from expenses that will be reimbursed by grants.  The deficit in the Business 
Improvement Tax is due to decreased revenues resulting from pandemic related business losses. 
The deficit in Measure W Fund is due to the lag in receipt of revenues from the measure.  The 



deficit in the Sewer Capital Projects fund is the result of a loan, with the loan proceeds included in 
the Sewer Fund (210).   
 
 
2. APPROPRIATIONS AND BUDGETARY CONTROL 
The City Council holds public hearings and adopts the City’s annual budget and may modify 
appropriations with majority approval. Increases in appropriations at the fund level during 
the year must be submitted by the City’s departments for City Council review and approval. 
The legal level of expenditures is controlled at the fund level, and appropriations lapse at the 
end of each fiscal year unless encumbered for re-appropriation by the City Council in the 
following fiscal year. Department heads may, without Council approval, amend individual 
line items within any fund in the maintenance and operations portions of the budget without 
increasing total appropriations for that division. The City Manager may, without Council 
approval, amend individual line items within any fund, and between divisions and programs, 
in the personnel costs, maintenance and operations, capital outlay and capital projects 
portions of the budget without increasing total appropriations for that fund. 
 
This policy has been met.  
 
Staff will implement at least quarterly financial reports to the City Council beginning with the 
FY 2021/2020 Budget.  In the meantime, staff will present a final quarterly update for the current 
fiscal year at the June 2021 City Council meeting.  
 
3. ENTERPRISE FUND 
We will require that our water, sewer, and golf course funds be self-supporting. 
 
The sewer fund was recognized as an enterprise fund starting in FY 2009/10, with the requirement 
of self-supporting funding. Water and sewer rate increases will assure that revenues exceed 
operating expenditures, including debt service. Budgeted water capital projects will be paid from 
a $37.8 million 2016 Water Bond issuance. Bond debt service will be paid out of water revenues. 
Sewer revenues along with a revolving loan from the State will pay for sewer capital 
improvements.  
 
The Water Fund will maintain a reserve equal to 30% of revenues.  This policy has been met. 
 
4. GENERAL FUND RESERVE  
We will strive to attain a General Fund undesignated fund balance equal to 30% of General 
Fund revenues at year end. 
 
This policy has been met and exceeded.   
 
5. GENERAL FUND DESIGNATED RESERVE  
 
The total designated reserves have been established for FY 2020/2021 is as follows: 
 

o Arroyo Golf Course; $600,000 



o CalTrans Vacant Lot Purchases; $392,000 
o Legal Reserve; $500,000 
o Maint. Yard/ Community Center; $267,067 
o Library Expansion; $200,000 
o Renewable Energy Source Reserve; $700,000 
o Retiree Pension Reserve; $500,000 
o Retiree Medical Reserve; $500,000 
o Tree Replacement; $50,000 
o Stormwater; $600,000 
o Library Park Drainage Reserve; $147,000 
o Financial Sustainability Reserve; $900,000 
o Slater Reimbursement Reserve; $345,876 
o Vehicle Replacement Reserve $100,000 
o SR-100 Interchange Project $1,410,000 

 
Staff will be seeking the City Council’s direction regarding the one-time cell tower revenues in 
the amount of $4,374,439 which is currently in undesignated reserves.  
 
6. INFRASTRUCTURE 
We will maintain a long-range fiscal perspective through the use of a Capital Improvement 
Program to maintain the quality of City infrastructure, including streets, sidewalks, sewers, 
drains, lighting, buildings, parks, and trees. 
 
Beginning FY 2013/14, the City has been committing a minimum of $2,000,000 per year towards 
street improvements. This year the City did not commit to this funding, to have the most flexibility 
in maintaining a balanced budget throughout the year. 
 
7. ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS 
We will comply with all requirements of generally accepted accounting principles. We will 
publish a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) in compliance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, prepared in coordination with our independent auditors, 
during the first quarter of each calendar year.   The CAFR, along with the Auditor’s report 
on internal controls and compliance, will be presented to the City Council at a public 
meeting,  
 
The City Council has approved the FY 2018/2019 CAFR.  The FY 2019/2020 CAFR is currently 
being prepared.  Staff anticipates presenting the FY 2019/2020 CAFR at the July 1, 2021 City 
Council meeting, or as soon as possible.  
 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT 
We will identify and quantify all areas of financial and operating risk, and prepare 
contingencies for those risks, including legal liabilities, infrastructure maintenance, 
emergency response, and contract and employee obligations. We will work with our 
Retirement system and Insurance Pool to seek full coverage of actuarially projected needs. 
 



Current insurance costs are fully funded with a retention of $100,000 for general liability, and 
$125,000 for workers’ compensation. Funding on a pay-as-you-go basis for leave liabilities, claims 
and judgments, and retiree health insurance costs remains the City’s practice. In accordance with 
GASB 45, a third-party actuarial valuation of the City’s liability for annual retiree medical costs 
has been completed every two years since FY 2008/09.  An updated actuarial valuation is being 
prepared for the FY 2019/2020 Audit.   
 
9. DEBT AND INVESTMENTS 
We will consider the use of debt when the cost of debt is lower than the City’s investment 
return, and when operating revenues are available to pay the debt. We will maximize the 
investment return on City Cash balances within the higher concerns of safety and liquidity. 
 
In FY 2020/2021 staff will continue to contract with financial advisory services to evaluate various 
options to leverage existing revenue streams.  
 
10. CONTROL OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 
All financial assets will be under the direct authority of the City Treasurer and Finance 
Director. 
This policy has been met. 
 
11. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
We will seek to realize the maximum use of all tax dollars to public benefit. 
This policy has been met through the review, and City Council approval of the annual budget.   
 
 



 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    1 

 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL 
POLICIES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

      2                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Intentionally Blank 
 
 
 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    3 

FISCAL POLICY STATEMENT 
 
To foster a culture of long-term fiscal sustainability, the Irvine City Council has adopted a number 
of fiscal policies. These policies set a framework to ensure a balanced budget, maintain healthy 
reserves, appropriately fund the City’s infrastructure needs, and set fees and charges within 
permitted subsidy thresholds. 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) \recommends that governments formally 
adopt financial policies, place the policies in the same sections of the budget document (with 
original and revision dates shown on the individual policies), and monitor, review, and update in 
a systematic way. 
 
The following policies are included in this document: 
 
 

Policy 
Original Date of 

Adoption 
Date of 

Revision 
Long-term Financial Planning June 11, 2019  
Biennial Budget June 11, 2019  
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Budget June 11, 2019  
Balanced Budget June 11, 2019  
General Fund Contingency Reserves June 11, 2019  
Infrastructure Funding  June 11, 2019  
Interfund Transfers and Loans June 11, 2019  
User Fees and Cost Recovery June 11, 2019  
Cost Allocation for Administrative and Support 
Functions 

June 11, 2019  

Grants and Federal Funds June 11, 2019  
Risk Management June 11, 2019  
Investment Policy October 9, 2018 June 11, 2019 
Debt Management Policy June 11, 2019  

 
 

 
 
 
 
  



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      4                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

A. Long-Term Financial Planning  
The City of Irvine is committed to long-term comprehensive financial planning.  
 

• The City prepares and publicly presents, during the budget development process, a 
detailed five-year forecast that includes an analysis of key revenues and expenditures, 
and proposed measures to address any projected gaps.  

• The forecast is prepared for the General Fund, Great Park funds, Capital funds, and other 
key revenues sources. The first two years of the forecast form the foundation for the City’s 
two-year budget. 
 

B. Biennial Budget 
The City adopts a biennial budget, developed in the context of the five-year financial plan. The 
following are key elements of the City’s biennial budget:  
 

• The City’s Fiscal Year starts on July 1st and ends on June 30th. 
• Budgetary appropriations are made by the City Council, through budget adoption, for two 

full fiscal years, broken out into one-year increments. 
• The City Manager submits the Proposed Budget to the City Council at least 30 days prior 

to the beginning of each biennial budget cycle, i.e. by June 1st or earlier. 
• The biennial budget is adopted by the City Council on or before June 30th following a 

public meeting where constituents are given an opportunity to comment on the Proposed 
Budget. 

• During the budget review at the end of the first fiscal year (the Mid-cycle), staff presents 
to the City Council any necessary adjustments to the second-year budget. The 
adjustments are based on additional funding reviewing, or major changes in revenues or 
expenditures in excess of two percent of General Fund appropriations.  

• During the fiscal year, any necessary budget adjustments that cannot wait for the Mid-
Cycle review or the subsequent budget process, may occur at any City Council meeting, 
at the request of staff. The City Council approves any revisions that increases the total 
budgeted expenditures or revenues of any department and fund, and any changes to 
permanent and full-time positions. The City Manager is authorized to make other 
budgetary adjustments up to $100,000, consistent with the City’s budget guidelines for 
contract budgeting. 

• In instances where specific activities/purchases are authorized by the City Council in a 
certain fiscal year and remain incomplete and/or unexpended, revenues and/or fund 
balance may be carried forward, at City Council’s discretion, into the next fiscal year to 
support such activities/purchases. 

• At the end of the first year of the two-year budget, departments with savings will have 
the opportunity to carry over unspent discretionary funds to the second year, barring any 
significant unforeseen revenue shortfalls or unanticipated demands. Similarly, 
departments that overspend in the first year would effectively see their second-year 
allocations reduced by the amount of overspending. 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    5 

• At the end of the second year, departments with savings will have the opportunity to 
retain 50 percent of the unused funds for capital or other one-time needs, barring any 
significant unforeseen revenue shortfalls or unanticipated demands, and subject to the 
City Council approval. The other 50 percent will be returned to General Fund Reserves. 
 

C. Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Budget  
• In conjunction with the biennial budget process, the City develops a five-year CIP. CIP projects 

are generally valued at over $50,000 and have an estimated useful life in excess of two years.  
CIP includes the following categories:  
o Streets and Mobility Improvements; 
o Facility Improvements; 
o Landscape Improvements; and 
o Great Park Improvements. 

• The CIP budget is driven by the City’s goal to appropriately maintain and care for the City’s 
infrastructure, in order to protect the City’s capital investment and to minimize future 
maintenance and replacement costs. 

• The CIP budget includes sources of funds in compliance with the Infrastructure Funding 
policy, previously appropriated funding as well as future five-year funding needs, and 
estimated future operating costs or savings associated with each capital project. 

• Similar to the operating budget, funding for the first two years of the CIP budget is approved 
during the biennial budget process. 
 

D. Balanced Budget 
The City Manager presents, and the City Council adopts, a balanced biennial budget, containing 
estimated revenues equal to appropriated expenditures. 
• The budget is balanced at the individual fund level. The estimated revenue sources must be 

sufficient to cover proposed uses. 
• Ongoing operations are funded by recurring revenues.   
• City policies on reserve requirements for specific funds are adhered to in the budget.   
• If shortfalls are projected after the budget adoption, during quarterly financial reviews, the 

City Manager will present a plan to address such shortfalls with sustainable measures in order 
to achieve a balanced budget by fiscal year-end. 

• Non-recurring revenues or one-time funding may be used to balance the budget during 
economic downturns, or as a result of unforeseen events.  
 

E. General Fund Contingency Reserves 
The City shall seek to maintain a General Fund Contingency Reserve at a level between 20 to 25 
percent of the General Fund adopted appropriations.  
• A 25 percent reserve level is desired, but will only be achieved when practical. 
• The Contingency Reserve may be used to help mitigate the effects of unanticipated situations 

such as natural disasters and severe, unforeseen events.   
• During the fiscal year, the Contingency Reserve may also be used to meet the City’s funds 

liquidity needs.  



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      6                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

• The City Council may authorize the use of reserves to address an unforeseen emergency, or 
to offset revenue decreases due to a significant economic downturn in order to maintain 
strategic essential services. At the time this authorization is given, a plan shall also be 
approved to replenish the reserves within three fiscal years. 
 

F. Infrastructure Funding 
The City shall operate and maintain its physical assets (including but not limited to Building and 
Facilities, Streets and Sidewalks, Equipment and Vehicles, and Technology) in a manner that 
protects the public investment and ensures achievement of their maximum useful life. 
• An assessment of each category of physical asset will be conducted approximately every five 

years, to assess the asset’s remaining life and identify repairs or replacement needs for the 
next five years with the goal of sustaining existing infrastructure in the most cost effective 
manner. 
 

• The City shall establish a Repair and Replacement fund for each infrastructure type.  
Building and Facilities:  
The City will use funds that are restricted for the specific assets prior to unrestricted funds, 
such as the Infrastructure and Rehabilitation Fund and the Asset Management Plan Fund.  
The funds that are available for the repairs and maintenance for Buildings and Facilities 
include but not limited to: 
o Great Park funds 
o Capital Improvement Project funds 
o Development Impact Fee funds 
o Quimby park funds 
o Grant funds 
o Infrastructure and Rehabilitation Fund 
 The Infrastructure and Rehabilitation Fund was created to provide for the 

accumulation and distribution of funds for various rehabilitation projects.  Sources for 
this fund is the investment income from the Asset Management Plan Fund. 

o Asset Management Plan (AMP) Fund  
 Provided there are sufficient funds, the AMP Fund can be used for repairs and 

replacement of City facilities only when no other source of funding is available. 
 Future contributions to the fund shall be made from unanticipated one-time sources 

with City Council approval, and as necessary through annual budget appropriations 
from the General Fund and other legally available funding sources. 

 
Streets and Sidewalks: 
Repairs and Replacement of Streets and Sidewalks are categorized into two efforts, mobility 
or circulation and infrastructure improvement or non-circulation. 
o Funding available for Mobility, or circulation efforts, include but not limited to:  
 Measure M2 
 Gas Tax 
 Senate Bill1 – Road Maintenance and Accountability Act (RMRA) 
 System Development Charge (SDC) Circulation 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    7 

 Slurry Seal Fund 
 Irvine Business Complex (IBC) - Transportation 
 North Irvine Transportation Mitigation (NITM) 

o Funding available for infrastructure improvement, or non-circulation efforts, include but 
not limited to:  
 Infrastructure and Rehabilitation Fund 
 Park-in-Lieu 
 System Development Charge (SDC) Non-Circulation  
 Orange County Great Park 
 Irvine Business Complex (IBC) – Neighborhood 

 
Equipment and Vehicles: 
o The Fleet Replacement fund will be used to pay for the original acquisition, replacement, 

and ongoing maintenance and operation of significant equipment. Equipment 
replacement will be determined based on age, and actual and projected vehicle 
maintenance costs. The goal is to maximize each vehicle’s useful life, while minimizing 
lifetime cost. 

o The annual contribution to the Fleet Replacement fund will include: internal service 
charges based on the allocation of vehicle expenses to user departments, interest 
earnings, proceeds from sale of surplus equipment, and any vehicle-related damage and 
insurance recoveries. 

o During the budget process, a list of new and replacement equipment for each department 
will be established through a fleet evaluation. The list of recommended new and 
replacement equipment purchases shall be approved by the City Council as part of the 
budget adoption.  
 

Technology: 
o The Strategic Technology Plan (STP) fund will be used to pay for the original acquisition, 

replacement, and ongoing maintenance and operation of significant technology. 
o The annual contribution to the STP fund will include: internal service charges based on 

the allocation of technology expenses to user departments, interest earnings, and any 
proceeds from sale of surplus technology equipment. 
 

Prior to approving the acquisition or construction of a new infrastructure asset, City staff will 
present to the City Council an estimate of the full cost to operate and maintain the asset through 
its useful life, the plan for meeting these costs, and funding availability in the applicable Repair 
and Replacement fund.  
 
G. Interfund Transfers and Loans 
Any transfers between funds for operating purposes shall be clearly set forth in the biennial 
budget.  From time to time, interfund borrowing may be approved by the City Council, with 
clearly established terms and conditions for the loans. 
 
 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      8                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

H. User Fees and Cost Recovery 
The City shall charge for services provided by City staff when such services benefit individual users 
rather than members of the community as a whole.   
 
• User fees and charges shall be established at a level that fully covers both direct and indirect 

costs of providing the service, wherever possible, in accordance with the Cost Recovery 
policies and Master Fee Schedule established by the City Council.  

• Fees shall be reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis.   
• Development process costs and related administrative expenses shall be fully offset by 

development fees, wherever possible. 
 

I. Cost Allocation for Administrative and Support Functions  
The City shall maintain a Cost Allocation Plan (CAP) to appropriately charge special funds for 
central administrative and support functions costs such as executive management, legal services, 
personnel, equipment and facility maintenance.  CAP shall be updated at least every two years.   
 
J. Grants and Federal Funds 
The City shall aggressively pursue all grant opportunities; however, before accepting grants, the 
City will consider the current and future implications of both accepting and rejecting the monies, 
including: 
 
• The amount of matching funds required; 
• In-kind services to be provided; 
• Requirements for reporting, earmarking and level of effort requirements; 
• The related operating expenses; and 
• Length of grant and consequential disposition of service (i.e. is the City obligated to continue 

the services after the grant has ended). 
 

K. Risk Management  
• The City manages risk through a combination of purchased insurance and direct payment 

(self-insurance).  
• The City self-insures workers’ compensation claims and general/auto liability claims up to a 

certain amount ($300,000 and $350,000 per claim, respectively, as of 2019). Excess workers’ 
compensation and general/auto liability insurance coverage shall be purchased. (In 2019, 
purchased insurance coverage of up to $3,000,000 per claim is provided through a risk-
sharing pool, the California Insurance Pool Authority (CIPA). CIPA also purchases excess 
coverage up to $43,000,000 for general/auto liability and $53,000,000 for workers’ 
compensation.)  

• Claims against the City are filed with the City Clerk’s office, pursuant to Government Code 
915. 

• The City may outsource workers’ compensation and general/auto liability claims 
administration services by contracting with a third-party claims administrator. (In 2019, 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    9 

claims administration services are provided by AdminSure (workers’ compensation) and 
George Hills Company (general/auto liability) through CIPA.) 

• Property, earthquake/flood, pollution liability and cyber liability exposures are insured 
through the purchase of traditional insurance policies. 

• Pursuant to Resolution No. 85-17, City Council approval is required for settlement of workers’ 
compensation or general/auto liability claims exceeding $20,000.  

• An annual actuarial study shall be conducted to provide an estimate of the self-insured 
liability to be recorded by the City in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 10. This statement requires the City to accrue a liability on its financial 
statements for a reasonable estimate of the cost of claims and expenses associated with all 
reported and unreported claims.  

• The City shall maintain reserves to fund its outstanding self-insured liabilities at the minimum 
level of 70 percent.  

• The City shall maintain a Self-Insurance Fund to both fund the liability reserve and recover all 
associated risk management costs, including claim payments, insurance premiums and any 
deductibles, and claim administration (internal and external). The fund’s revenues shall be 
generated through assessments to City departments based on their claim experience and 
outstanding liabilities. These departmental assessments shall be evaluated annually and 
adjusted as needed.  

• Staff shall report to the Finance Commission and City Council at least annually on the claims 
processed, amounts paid, and steps taken to manage and reduce the City’s risk and liability. 

 
L. Investment Policy 
This statement of Investment Policy is intended to provide specific criteria for the prudent 
investment of City funds. The ultimate investment goal is to enhance the economic status of 
the City while protecting funds under management and meeting the daily cash flow demands 
of the City. This investment policy has been prepared in conformance with all pertinent existing 
laws of the State of California including California Government Code Sections 53600, et seq. 
 
Scope 
This investment policy applies to the City's Irvine Pooled Investment Portfolio, Bond Proceeds 
Portfolio, and Special District Funds Portfolio. These portfolios encompass all monies under the 
direct oversight of the Treasurer and include the General Fund, Reserve Funds, Special Revenue 
Funds, Debt Service Funds, Capital Project Funds, Permanent Fund, Proprietary Funds, Trust and 
Agency Funds, including the Successor Agency to the Dissolved Irvine Redevelopment Agency, 
and any other funds that may be created. These funds are accounted for in the City of Irvine’s 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
 
Delegation of Authority 
Authority to manage the City of Irvine’s investment program is derived from the Charter of the 
City of Irvine, Section 2-2-101(B). The authority of the City Council to invest or reinvest monies 
of the City has been delegated by the City Council to the City Treasurer for one year or until 
such time the delegation is revoked. The City Treasurer shall be responsible for all transactions 
undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      10                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

officials, and their procedures in the absence of the City Treasurer. The City Treasurer may 
delegate daily investment activity, such as carrying out the Treasurer's investment instructions, 
confirming treasury transactions, and other routine activities. 
 
The City Treasurer shall establish written investment policy procedures for the operation of the 
investment program consistent with this policy. The procedures should include reference to: 
safekeeping, master repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements, banking service 
contracts and collateral/depository agreements. Such procedures shall include explicit 
delegation of authority to persons responsible for investment transactions. No person may 
engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and the 
procedures established by the City Treasurer. 
 
The Treasurer is responsible for the investment of bond proceeds and special district funds, 
whether held by the City, a fiscal agent, or trustee. The Bond Proceeds and Special District Funds 
Portfolios shall be segregated from the Irvine Pooled Investment Portfolio and will be structured 
with maturities (or maintain an average maturity) sufficient to meet construction drawdowns, 
debt service payments and other short-term liabilities. For purposes of efficiency, the Treasurer 
may instruct each fiscal agent or trustee to purchase certain securities regarding the investment 
of bond proceeds and special district funds in conformance with the permitted investment 
criteria documented in each bond indenture or guiding resolution. Where present, bond 
indenture and guiding resolution documentation for investment of bond proceeds and special 
district funds will supersede the City of Irvine Investment Policy guidelines. The Investment 
Advisory Committee will be advised of any investments made outside of the Investment Policy, 
pursuant to bond indentures, and/or guiding resolutions. 
 
Currently, management of the Irvine Pooled Investment Portfolio, Bond Proceeds Portfolio, and 
Special District Funds Portfolio has been delegated to an investment advisory firm that has full 
authority to execute investment transactions on behalf of the City. In the event the contract 
management firm is not able to execute investment transactions, the City Treasurer and Deputy 
City Treasurer have the authority to execute investment transactions. 
 
Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business 
activity that conflicts with proper execution of the investment program or that impairs their 
ability to make impartial investment decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose 
any material financial interests that could be related to the performance of the City's 
investment policy annually with the California Fair Political Practices Commission or as necessary 
under the Political Reform Act and Government Code Section 1090 et seq. 
 
Prudence/Prudent investor standard 
The Treasurer operates the City's pooled investment program under the Prudent Investor 
Standard, Government Code Section 53600.3, and applicable State laws. When investing, 
reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, and managing public funds, the Treasurer 
shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    11 

including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the 
City, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in 
the conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and 
maintain the liquidity needs of the City. Within the limitations of this section and considering 
individual investments as part of an overall strategy, investments may be acquired and sold as 
authorized by law.  This affords a broad spectrum of investment opportunities so long as the 
investment is deemed prudent and permissible by the State of California, various bond 
indentures and this policy. The Treasurer strives to invest 100 percent of idle funds. 
 
Internal Controls 
The Treasurer and Manager of Fiscal Services shall establish procedures that separate the 
internal responsibility for management and accounting of the investment portfolios. An analysis 
by an external independent auditor shall be conducted annually to review internal controls, 
account activity and compliance with policies and procedures. 
 
Investment Objectives 
The City's cash management system is designed to accurately monitor and forecast revenues 
and expenditures, thus enabling the Treasurer to invest funds to the fullest extent possible. 
The Treasurer maintains a diversified portfolio to accomplish the primary objectives in the order 
of safety, liquidity, and yield. 
 
Safety:  The safety/risk associated with an investment refers to the potential loss of principal, 
accrued interest or a combination of these. The Treasurer seeks to mitigate credit risk by 
monitoring financial institutions with which he/she will do business, and by careful scrutiny of 
the credit worthiness of the investment instruments as well as the institutions. Such resources 
as     a nationally recognized statistical-rating organization (NRSRO) services are utilized for this 
review. The Treasurer seeks to mitigate interest rate risk through diversification of instruments as 
well as maturities.  
 
Liquidity:  The portfolio will be structured with sufficient liquidity to allow the Treasurer to meet 
anticipated cash requirements. This will be accomplished through the purchase of a diversity of 
instruments to include those with active secondary markets, those that can match maturities to 
expected cash needs, and the State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) with immediate 
withdrawal provisions. 
 
Yield:   A competitive market rate of return is the third objective of the investment program 
after the fundamental requirements of safety and liquidity have been met. The portfolio shall 
be managed to consistently attain a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic 
cycles. Whenever possible, and consistent with risk limitations and prudent investment 
management, the City will seek to augment returns above the market average rate of return 
through the implementation of active portfolio management strategies. 
 
Performance Evaluation 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      12                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

Investment performance is continually monitored and evaluated by the City Treasurer. 
Investment portfolio reports are generated on a monthly and quarterly basis and submitted to 
the City Council, City Manager, and Investment Advisory Committee. A quarterly Treasurer’s 
report is also presented to the City Council, Finance Commission, and Investment Advisory 
Committee during respective regularly scheduled meetings. 
 
The investment portfolio reports are to be submitted within 30 days of the end of the reporting 
period. The monthly average yield of the Irvine Pooled Investment Portfolio will be compared to 
the monthly average 6-month CMT (Constant Maturity Treasury) as calculated by the Federal 
Reserve Bank of New York. As an added reference, the monthly average yield of the Irvine 
Pooled Investment Portfolio will be compared to the monthly average 2-year CMT as calculated by 
the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. 
 
Diversification 
The City will diversify use of investment instruments to avoid unreasonable risks inherent in 
over-investing in specific instruments, individual financial institutions, or maturities. 
 
Market price volatility shall be controlled through maturity diversification, as well as ensuring 
adequate liquidity is available to meet cash flow requirements, thereby precluding the need to 
sell instruments at a market loss. 
 
Risk of default will be controlled by acquiring instruments such as Government Securities, or by 
diversifying the portfolio within the constraints and  parameters  of  Section  17  of  this  Policy,  
Authorized  and  Suitable Investments. 
 
Portfolio Segregation 
Within the overall funds managed by the Treasurer, bond proceeds and special district funds 
shall be segregated from the general City pool into their own pool and be invested in 
conformance with the permitted investment criteria documented in each bond indenture or 
guiding resolution. Furthermore, bond proceeds held by fiscal agents or trustees shall also be 
segregated and invested in accordance with each indenture. 
 
The primary purpose of any separately managed bond proceeds and special district funds 
portfolios is to structure investment maturities to meet current and future liabilities. The 
preservation of principal and the maintenance of liquidity are the most important factors 
regarding the investment of bond proceeds and special district funds. Portfolio yield is not a 
primary factor since the portfolio structure, eligible investment assets and maturity restrictions 
are governed by draws and expenditure schedules of the issues. Performance will be based 
upon maximizing permitted positive arbitrage within the context of principal preservation as a 
first priority (pre- 
1986 Tax Reform Act issuances) or minimizing or eliminating negative arbitrage (yield-restricted 
issues). 
 
Bond Issuance Arbitrage Rebate 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    13 

The U.S. Tax Reform Act of 1986 requires the City to perform annual arbitrage calculations and 
rebate excess earnings to the U.S. Treasury for investment returns that exceed the allowable 
interest earnings limit of each bond issue. The arbitrage calculation process must be conducted 
for the investment of proceeds of bond issues sold after the effective date of this law. This 
arbitrage calculation will be contracted out to provide the necessary technical expertise to 
comply with this regulation. The City's investment position relative to the interest rate arbitrage 
restrictions is to have safety and the highest permitted return the law allows as the highest 
priority while ensuring the preservation of principal and liquidity. 
 
Qualified Dealers 
The Treasurer shall transact business only with Registered Investment Advisors, national or state-
chartered banks, savings and loans, and broker dealers. The dealers should be primary dealers 
regularly reporting to the New York Federal Reserve Bank, or approved regional or secondary 
market dealers that qualify under the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 
(uniform net capital rule). 
 
The Treasurer may direct a fiscal agent or trustee to execute investment transactions on 
behalf of the City for funds held by that fiscal agent or trustee. 
 
The City may purchase “prime” quality rated commercial paper from its direct issuer if it 
presents a higher return than in the secondary market. 
 
The Treasurer will monitor broker/dealers and their firms, to ensure they are in good standing 
with the appropriate regulatory agencies. The Treasurer will review financials and report back 
to the Investment Advisory Committee. 
 
Safekeeping of Securities 
To protect against losses caused by the collapse of individual securities dealers, all securities 
owned by the City, including collateral for repurchase agreements, shall be held in safekeeping 
by a third party bank trust department acting as agent for the City under the terms of a custody 
agreement or, in the case of funds held by the fiscal agent or trustee, the fiscal agent or trustee 
shall segregate and report securities held on the City's behalf. Any trade executed by a dealer is 
required to settle on a delivery versus payment basis with the City's safekeeping agent. 
 
Fiscal agents or trustees in receipt of City of Irvine bond proceeds will settle security transactions 
on a delivery versus payment method based upon instructions provided by the Treasurer or the 
City's investment advisor. The fiscal agents or trustees will issue monthly custodian statements 
evidencing securities held in safekeeping, including the receipt of interest and maturity 
proceeds, the disbursement of funds for the purchase of securities, and the receipt of any sale 
proceeds. 
 
Collateralization  
All demand deposits, time deposits and repurchase agreements are to be fully collateralized 
with securities authorized by the California Government Code and the City. 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      14                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

 
• The cost value (book value) of collateral pledged for demand deposits must at all times be 

equal to or greater than the amount on deposit, plus accrued interest, in accordance with 
the following ratio: 

U.S. Treasury Securities 110% 
• The cost value (book value) of collateral pledged for repurchase agreements must 

at all times be equal to or greater than the par amount, plus accrued interest, with 
the following ratios: 

U.S. Treasury Securities 102%  
U.S. Government Agencies 102% 

• It is the policy of the City to require reports at least on a quarterly basis from 
institutions with which the Treasurer has pledged security interest. The Treasurer shall 
monitor the adequacy of collateralization to ensure that balances are collateralized in 
accordance with the ratios approved herein. 

• With regard to repurchase agreements, it is the policy of the City to initiate a margin 
call in the event pledged collateral falls below the appropriate ratio. 

• Collateralized investments and deposits often require substitution of collateral. Any 
broker or financial institution requesting substitution must contact the City for 
approval in the event the counterparty to the transaction is not authorized under 
agreement with the City to make substitutions. 

 
Maximum Maturities 

• Pooled Investment Portfolio 
In accordance to California Government Code Section 53601, The City will not invest 
in any securities maturing more than five (5) years from the settlement date of purchase. 
If the Treasurer desires to make investments longer than five years, express authority 
to make those investments, either specifically or as part of an investment program, 
must be approved by the City Council no less than three months prior to the investment. 
In no event will securities with maximum maturities beyond four years exceed 40 
percent of the portfolio’s total carrying cost at the time of purchase. 

 
• Bond Proceeds Portfolio/Special District Funds Portfolio 

The Bond Proceeds and Special District Funds Portfolios held by the City, fiscal agents 
or trustees will be structured with maturities sufficient to meet current and future 
disbursements and other liabilities consistent with the purpose of each bond issue. 
The Treasurer may match maturities to defined future liabilities or may structure the 
portfolio in such a manner as to maintain an average maturity and a defined liquidity 
percentage necessary to meet estimated liabilities. In no event will securities be 
purchased with final maturities that exceed a specifically defined future liquidity 
requirement (such as bond reserve fund availability requirement) or liability. 

 
Investment Pools/Money Market Mutual Funds 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    15 

A thorough investigation of any government sponsored pool and/or mutual fund is required 
prior to investing and on a continual basis. There shall be a questionnaire completed which 
will provide the following information: 
 

• A description of eligible investment securities, and a written statement of investment 
policy and objectives. 

• A description of interest calculations and how it is distributed, and how gains and losses 
are treated. 

• A description of how the securities are safeguarded (including the settlement processes), 
and how often the securities are priced and the program audited. 

• A description of who may invest in the program, how often, and what size of deposits 
and withdrawals are allowed. 

• A schedule for receiving statements and portfolio listings. 
• A description of how the pool/fund utilizes reserves, retained earnings, etc. 
• A fee schedule, including when and how fees are assessed. 
• The eligibility of the pool/fund to invest in bond proceeds and special district funds, 

and a description of its practices. 
 
Authorized and Suitable Investments 
The City is governed by the California Government Code, Sections 53600 et seq. Within the 
context of these limitations and based on the cost at the time of purchase, the following 
investments are authorized as further limited herein: 
 

Authorized Investment Summary Matrix 
 

Category  Percent 
 

A. 
B. 
C. 

US Treasuries 
US Agencies 
Bankers’ Acceptances 

no limit no 
limit 
25% 

D. Commercial Paper 15% 
E. Repurchase Agreements 25% 
F. Reverse Repurchase Agreements 15% 
G. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 25% 
H. Municipal Bonds 25% 
I. Corporate Medium Term Notes 15% 
J. Money Market Mutual Funds 20% 
K. Supranationals 10% 

 
A. United States Treasury Bills, Bonds, and Notes, or those for which the full faith and credit of 

the United States are pledged for payment of principal and interest. There is no limitation as 
to the percentage of the portfolio that can be invested in this category. 
 

B. Obligations issued by United States Federal agencies or government- sponsored enterprise 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      16                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

obligations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to 
principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-sponsored 
enterprises. Although there is no percentage limitation on these issues, the "prudent 
investor" standard shall apply to investments from a single agency. 
 

C. Bills  of  exchange  or  time  drafts  drawn  on  and  accepted  by  a commercial bank, 
otherwise known as Bankers’ Acceptances. Bankers’ Acceptances purchased may not exceed 
180 days to maturity or 25 percent of the cost (book) value of the portfolio. No more than 
$5 million may be invested in Bankers’ Acceptances issued by any one bank. Prior to the 
purchase of any Banker’s Acceptance, the portfolio manager shall review the rating of the 
issuing bank. Bankers’ Acceptances of issuing financial institutions shall have both a short and 
long term rating in the highest category by at least one nationally recognized rating agency 
at the time of purchase. 
 

D. Commercial paper ranked of "prime" quality of the highest ranking or of the highest letter 
and number rating as provided for by NRSRO and issued by a domestic corporation having 
assets in excess of $500 million. The commercial paper must also have an “A” or better rating 
for the issuer’s debt, other than commercial paper, if any, as provided by a NRSRO. Purchase 
of commercial paper from corporations on negative credit watch by a major rating agency 
shall be prohibited. Purchases of eligible commercial paper may not exceed 270 days to 
maturity. Excluding the Special District Funds Portfolio, purchases of commercial paper 
may not exceed 15 percent of the cost value of the portfolio at time of purchase, and no 
more than 3 percent of the cost value of the portfolio may be invested in commercial paper 
issued by any one corporation. Corporate medium term note and bankers’ acceptance 
holdings shall be considered when calculating the maximum dollar amount in any issuer 
name. 

 
Upon any announcement of negative credit watch or downgrade by a major rating agency of 
any issue within the portfolio, the investment manager should contact the City 
Treasurer/City Manager and recommend a course of action. If at any time a security falls 
below “investment grade,” the investment manager should obtain the best bid and take the 
necessary steps toward liquidation. 

 
E. Repurchase   agreements.   The   City   may   invest   in   repurchase agreements with banks 

and primary dealers with whom the City has entered into a master repurchase agreement 
that specifies terms and conditions of repurchase agreements. No more than 25 percent of the 
cost value of the portfolio may be invested in repurchase agreements at any time. The 
maturity of repurchase agreements shall not exceed 75 days. 
 
The cost value of securities used as collateral for repurchase agreements shall be monitored 
daily by the Treasurer and will not be allowed to fall below the margin ratios specified in 
Section 14 (2) of this policy. In order to conform with provisions of the Federal Bankruptcy 
Code which provides for the liquidation of securities held as collateral for repurchase 
agreements, the only securities acceptable as collateral shall be securities that are direct 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    17 

obligations of, or that are fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the United States 
Government such as Treasury bills, Treasury notes or Treasury bonds with less than a five 
year maturity. 

 
F. Reverse repurchase agreements. The City may invest in reverse repurchase agreements only 

with those banks and primary dealers with whom the City has entered into a master 
repurchase agreement outlining terms and conditions of repurchase and reverse repurchase 
agreements. The City may only invest in reverse repurchase agreements for the following 
purpose: 

 
1. The City may enter into reverse repurchase agreements when funds obtained through 

the reverse can be reinvested in a higher yielding security to obtain additional interest 
income for the City at a spread deemed to be acceptable by the Treasurer under then 
prevailing market conditions. Reverse repurchase agreements entered into in 
accordance with this paragraph may not exceed 75 days to maturity and must be 
matched as to maturity   and   dollars   invested   with   its   corresponding reinvestment. 
No more than 15 percent of the cost value (book value) of the portfolio may be invested 
in reverse repurchase agreements. 

 
2. Reverse  repurchase  agreements  may  be  used  for  liquidity purposes when it is 

determined that the portfolio has sufficient additional collateral coming due within the 
term of the reverse repurchase agreement equal to or exceeding the amount of the 
reverse repurchase agreement.  

 
G. The City may invest in the LAIF established by the State Treasurer for the benefit of local 

agencies up to the maximum permitted by State law, but not to exceed 25 percent of the 
cost value (book value) of the total portfolio excluding the Bond Proceeds Portfolio. 
 

H. Bonds issued by local agencies of the United States, including bonds payable solely out of 
the revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by the local 
agency or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the local agency rated “AA” or 
better  by a NRSRO. "AA" rated bonds shall be limited to 36 months maximum maturity 
and "AAA" rated bonds shall be limited to 60 months maximum maturity. No more than 25 
percent of the cost value (book value) of the portfolio may be invested in municipal bonds. 
 
Upon any announcement of negative credit watch or downgrade by a major rating agency of 
any issue within the portfolio, the investment manager should contact the City 
Treasurer/City Manager and recommend a course of action. If at any time a security falls 
below “investment grade,” the investment manager should obtain the best bid and take the 
necessary steps toward liquidation. 
 

I. Corporate medium term notes issued by a domestic corporation having assets in excess 
of $500 million and having an “AA” or better rating criteria at time of purchase on its long-
term debentures as provided by a NRSRO. Purchase of corporate medium term notes from 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      18                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

corporations on negative credit watch by a major rating agency shall be prohibited. "AA" 
rated medium term notes shall be limited to 36 months maximum maturity and "AAA" 
rated medium term notes shall be limited to 60 months maximum maturity. The aggregate 
total of all purchased medium term notes may not exceed 15 percent of the cost value of the 
portfolio. No more than 3 percent of the cost value of the portfolio may be invested in 
corporate medium term notes issued by any one corporation. Commercial paper and 
bankers’ acceptance holdings shall be considered when calculating the maximum percentage 
in any issuer name. 
 
Upon any announcement of negative credit watch or downgrade by a major rating agency of 
any issue within the portfolio, the investment manager should contact the City 
Treasurer/City Manager and recommend a course of action. If at any time a security falls 
below “investment grade,” the investment manager should obtain the best bid and take the 
necessary steps toward liquidation. 
 

J. Money market mutual funds having a rating of “AAA” or an equivalent by no less than two 
NRSRO with no load and maintained at $1 par value. No more than 20 percent of the cost 
value of portfolio value at time of purchase, excluding the Special District Funds Portfolio, 
should be invested in this category, and the City's investment in any specific mutual fund 
will not exceed 2 percent of that mutual fund's total assets. 
 

K. Supranational securities of United States dollar denominated senior unsecured 
unsubordinated obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the International 
Bank for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation, or Inter-
American Development Bank, with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or less, and 
eligible for purchase and sale within the United States. Investments under this subdivision 
shall be rated “AAA” or better by an NRSRO and shall not exceed 10 percent of the agency’s 
moneys that may be invested pursuant to this section. 

 
Ineligible Investments 
Investments not described herein including, but not limited to, equity securities such as 
common stocks, preferred stocks, convertibles, inverse floaters, range notes and interest-only 
strips that are derived from a pool of mortgages are prohibited from use in this portfolio. The City 
is prohibited from entering into a margin agreement and/or borrowing on margin. 
 
Investment Advisory Committee 
The City has created a five-member Investment Advisory Committee as a standing Committee 
to advise the City on matters relating to the City's Investment Policy and the investment of City 
funds. The Committee meets at least quarterly with the Treasurer and City staff and reports 
directly to the City Council. Each Councilmember appoints one person to the Committee. The 
Committee member's term is concurrent with the term of the appointing Councilmember. 
The Committee will be governed by a set of Bylaws (Exhibit A) to be reviewed and approved 
annually. 
 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    19 

Portfolio Reporting 
In accordance with California Government Code, Sections 53607 and 53646(b), the Treasurer 
shall provide on a monthly and quarterly basis (or as otherwise requested by the City Manager) 
an investment portfolio report to the City Council. The report shall include a listing of each 
of the City's investments (a description that adequately describes the security), the purchase 
date, maturity date, cost basis, current cost value (book value), interest rate, weighted average 
maturity, current unrealized loss or gain and a listing of investment transactions that includes 
purchase/deposit and sale/withdrawal activity. Various investment types will be categorized 
and grouped in the same structure as the qualified investment categories identified in this 
policy. The portfolio report shall include a statement certifying the ability of the City to meet its 
expenditure requirements for the next six months, or provide an explanation as to why sufficient 
money shall, or may, not be available. The report will also include comments on the fixed income 
markets and economic conditions, and the effect, if any, on the portfolio structure and 
investment strategy. The report shall also detail all repurchase and reverse repurchase 
positions and associated liabilities. 
 
The investment portfolio report shall include market value information for all investments. A 
monthly market value will be obtained for each security owned by the City. For purposes of 
reporting, the market value of each security may be obtained from the City’s custodian bank 
or other pricing source(s) utilized by the City’s designated investment management firm 
(registered investment advisor). 
 
The City shall record interest revenue on a modified accrual basis of accounting that is typical 
for reporting and recording of interest earnings. Securities held by a fiscal agent or trustee shall 
also be recorded on a modified accrual basis of accounting. The Treasurer will report year-end 
investments in conformance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos. 
31, 40, and 72. 
 
The Treasurer will provide a monthly reconciliation of all funds included in the investment 
portfolios. The reconciliation shall utilize all available information including the City's books, the 
Demand Deposit Bank account, the custodian's statement, and the fiscal agent and trustee's 
statement. 
 
Review of Investment Portfolio 
The securities held by the City must be in compliance with Section 17, Authorized and Suitable 
Investments, at the time of purchase. The Treasurer shall review the portfolios quarterly to 
identify any securities that are no longer in compliance. The Treasurer shall report any major 
and critical incidences of noncompliance in the quarterly treasurer’s report to the City Council 
and Investment Advisory Committee. 
 
 
M. Debt Management Policy 
Senate Bill (SB) 1029 (Hertzberg), signed by Governor Brown on September 12, 2016, requires 
issuers to adopt debt policies addressing the purposes for which debt proceeds may be used, 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      20                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

the types of debt may be issued, the relationship of the debt to and, integration with, the 
capital improvement program or budget, policy goals, and internal control procedures to ensure 
debt proceeds will be directed to the intended use. 
 
The City of Irvine’s Debt Policy set forth in this document is in compliance with SB 1029. 
 
Introduction 
The City of Irvine’s Debt Management Policy sets a framework for the issuance and  use  of  
debt  in  order  to  minimize  the  City’s  debt  burden  and  cost  of issuance, obtain and maintain 
the highest possible credit ratings, ensure full compliance with applicable federal, state and 
local laws and regulations, and provide optimal financial flexibility for the City. This policy applies 
to all debt issued by the City and its component units. 
 
Debt Limits 
The City shall maintain outstanding debt within the limits prescribed by State of California 
statutes and at levels consistent with credit objectives. There is no statutory restriction on the 
amount of revenue bonds that can be outstanding at any given time. However, each proposed 
financing will be carefully assessed by city staff, subject to approval by the City Council. 
 
Debt Structure 
The City will normally issue debt with the term of up to 30 years. Escalating debt service 
payments in later years will be avoided if practical, with the potential exception of the first 
and final year of a debt payment schedule. Variable rate debt may be considered when 
determined to be in the best interest of the City. Interest and principal payments shall not be 
deferred, with interest paid in the first  fiscal  year  after  debt  issuance and  principal  starting 
no  later  than  the second fiscal year. 
 
Credit Objectives 
The City of Irvine shall maintain the highest possible credit ratings for all categories of long-term 
debt. 
 
The City may seek to use credit enhancement (letters of credit, bond insurance, surety bonds, 
etc.) when it proves cost-effective or provides additional security for the payment of debt 
service. 
 
Cost and Fees 
All costs and fees related to the issuance of debt will be paid out of debt proceeds.  An  amount  
will  be  determined  at  the  time  of  the  issuance  to reimburse the City for costs incurred 
based on the time factors and complexity of the issue. Where applicable, the annual, recurring 
costs incurred by the City for administering the debt shall be charged to the appropriate account. 
 
Method of Debt Offering 
The City shall evaluate the best method of offering for each proposed debt. 
 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    21 

I. Competitive offering.  In a competitive offering, bids for the purchase of the bonds are 
opened at a specified place and time and are awarded to the underwriter whose 
confirming bid represents the lowest true interest cost to the City. 

 
II. Negotiated sale.   When a negotiated sale is deemed advantageous in consultation 

with the City’s financial advisor, the City shall negotiate the most competitive pricing on 
debt issues and underwriter discounts in order to ensure the best value to the City. 
Generally in a negotiated sale, the underwriter will be selected based on a formal bid 
process. The City, with the assistance of its financial advisor, shall evaluate the interested 
underwriters’ proposals on qualifications, and net fees. Criteria for selection will be 
determined on a case by case basis. No debt issue will be sold on a negotiated basis 
without an independent financial advisor. 

 
III. Private placement.  In certain instances, the City may determine to utilize private 

placements or offerings to specially defined or otherwise limited investor types, but 
will only do so in the absence of other avenues for acquiring the required capital in a 
more cost effective manner or in instances where the purpose is determined to be of 
significant strategic importance to the City. 

 
Relationship to Capital Improvement Program and Operating Budget 
The decision to incur new indebtedness should be integrated with the City Council adopted 
annual operating budget and Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget. Prior to issuance of 
debt, a reliable revenue source shall be identified to secure repayment of the debt and the 
annual debt service payments shall be included in the operating budget. The City shall integrate 
its debt issuances with the goals of its CIP by timing the issuance of debt to ensure that projects 
are available when needed in furtherance of the City's public purposes. 
 
Use of Debt Proceeds 
The City will consider the use of debt financing primarily for assets and capital projects only if 
the term of debt shall not exceed the asset(s) or project’s useful life or will otherwise comply 
with Federal tax law requirements. An exception to this long-term driven focus is the issuance 
of short-term instruments, such as tax and revenue anticipation notes, which are to be used 
for reasonable cash management purposes. Bonded indebtedness should not be issued to 
finance normal operating expenses. General Fund debt will not be issued to support ongoing 
operational costs unless such debt issuance achieves net operating cost savings and such 
savings are verified by independent analysis. 
 
Types of Debt Financing 
 
General Obligation Bonds 
When issuing debt, the City shall strive to use special assessment, revenue, or other self-
supporting bonds in lieu of general obligation bonds. General obligation bonds will only be 
considered when no other funding or financing options are available. All general obligation 
bonds shall be authorized by the requisite number of voters in order to pass. 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      22                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

 
Short-term Financing 
The City Council may authorize the issuance of municipal notes, the use of lines of credit, or 
capital lease arrangements as interim financing mechanisms in anticipation of future revenues 
at the recommendation of the Finance Commission. This interim financing will only be used 
when no existing City funding is available to satisfy interim financing needs. Examples of 
municipal notes include Tax Anticipation Notes, Revenue Anticipation Notes, Bond Anticipation 
Notes, or Grant Anticipation Notes. 
 
Revenue Bonds 
The City Council may authorize the issuance of revenue bonds as a means of financing capital 
facilities that will generate sufficient revenues to fully sustain all relevant operational and 
capital costs. The following criteria will be used to evaluate revenue-backed financing: 
 

I. Revenues available for debt service are deemed to be sufficient and reliable so that 
the bonds can be marketed with investment grade credit ratings.  Revenue projections 
shall be prepared for the entire term of the contemplated bond. 

II. Market conditions present favorable interest rates and demand for the financing. 
III. The useful life of the project or asset to be financed is at least equal to the term of the 

Bonds to be issued. 
 
These types of obligations are often structured as Lease Revenue Bonds or Certificates of 
Participation (COPs).  If so structured, debt service shall not exceed the fair rental value of the 
leased asset for the term of the lease. 
 
Land Secured Bonds 
Land-secured bonds may be issued under the provisions of the Mello Roos Community Facilities 
Districts Act of 1982 (Commencing with Section 53311 of the Government Code), the 
Improvement Act of 1911, the Municipal Improvement Act of 1913 for special assessment 
districts and the Improvement Bond Act of 1915 Act for the issuance of bonds. These bonds 
become an obligation of the special district and are not an obligation of the City or any of its 
component units. 
 
Conduit Financing 
The City may sponsor conduit financing for the activities that have a general public purpose 
and are consistent with the City's stated policy objectives. The City will consider all requests 
for conduit financing based on the articulated public purpose of the proposed financing, and the 
applicant’s ability to achieve such purpose. 
 
All conduit financing must insulate the City completely from any credit risk, and financial or legal 
exposure. The City may, at its sole discretion, require additional protections including but not 
limited to asset appraisals, financial audits, and additional security to ensure that the City’s 
interests will be appropriately protected. 
 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    23 

The City may charge a fee for sponsoring conduit financing activities based on the specifics of 
the financing, in order to recover staff time and overhead. 
 
The City may elect to participate in other conduit type financings that are administered 
by another local, regional or statewide government agency or financing authority, and if it is 
determined to be in the best interest of the City with no liability or risk. 
 
Refunding Bonds 
Periodic reviews of all outstanding debt will be undertaken by the City’s finance team to 
determine refunding (refinancing) opportunities.   The purpose of refinancing may be to: 
 

I. Achieve or monetize debt service savings. 
II. Update or revise covenants on an outstanding debt issue.  

III. Restructure debt service associated with an issue. 
IV. Change debt characteristics such as call provisions or payment dates. 

 
Generally, the City will strive to achieve a minimum of five percent net present value savings of 
the refunded debt, net of cost of issuance.  A higher minimum threshold for savings may be 
considered in the case of advance refunding. 
 
Compliance 
 
Pre-issuance Compliance 
Senate Bill No. 1029 requires issuers of debt of state or local government to submit 
reports to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC), within specific 
timeframes, of the proposed issuance of debt. 
 
The Report of Proposed Debt shall include a certification that the City has adopted a debt 
policy, which includes specified provision concerning the use of debt, and that the proposed 
debt issuance is consistent with the policy. 
 
The Report of Proposed Debt shall be filed with CDIAC in a timely fashion.  In addition, the 
City shall periodically update this policy to ensure provisions concerning the use of debt continue 
to meet the City’s needs. 
 
Investment of Proceeds 
The City shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and contractual restrictions regarding 
the investment of bond proceeds. This includes compliance with restrictions on the types of 
investment securities allowed, restrictions on the allowable yield of invested funds, as well as 
restriction on the time period over which the proceeds may be invested. 
 
Arbitrage Rebate 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      24                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

Due to the complexity of arbitrage rebate regulations and the severity of non- compliance 
penalties, the City shall contract with an independent expert for preparation of the arbitrage 
rebate calculation in accordance with the IRS code and regulations.  
 
The City shall maintain an internal system for tracking expenditure of bond proceeds and 
investment earnings by each issue with the assistance from its fiscal agent(s). 
 
Continuing Disclosure 
The City established its Continuing Disclosure Compliance Procedures outlining its 
responsibilities as the issuer to make all reasonable efforts to assist underwriters in their efforts 
to comply with Security Exchange Commission or SEC Rule 15c2-12 and MSRB Rule G-36. The 
City will file Continuing Disclosure reports and/or certificates with the Electronic Municipal 
Market Access (EMMA) system, the official repository for information on all municipal bonds. 
The City will also provide a copy of its Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFR) upon 
request and will disseminate other information that it deems pertinent to the market as 
required. While initial bond disclosure requirements pertain to bond offering statements, the 
City will provide financial information and notices of material events on an ongoing basis 
throughout the life of the issue in accordance with agreements to do so on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.  
 
With respect to conduit debt, continuing disclosure requirements will be provided by the City 
only if the City is contractually obligated to do so. The City is to be  reimbursed  by  the  borrower  
for  the  cost  of  providing  continuing disclosure services. 
 
Post-Issuance Compliance 
Tax-exempt bonds issued by the City retain their tax-exempt status throughout the life of the 
issue if all applicable federal tax laws are satisfied while the bonds are outstanding. Various 
requirements apply under the Internal Revenue Code and Income Tax Regulations including 
information filing and other requirements related to issuance, the proper and timely use of 
bond-financed property, and arbitrage yield restriction and rebate requirements. 
 
Internal Control Procedures 
The  City  shall  periodically  review  the  requirements  of  and  will  remain  in compliance 
with the following: 
 

I. Federal securities law, including any continuing disclosure undertakings under SEC 
Rule 15c2-12 

II. Any  federal  tax  compliance  requirements  including  without  limitation arbitrage 
and rebate compliance 

III. The City's investment policies as they relate to the investment of bond proceeds 
IV. Government Code section 8855(k) and the annual reporting requirements therein 

  



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    25 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      26                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    27 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      28                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    29 



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

      30                                                                                                                                              FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget 

  



FINANCIAL POLICIES 

FY 2019-21 Adopted Budget                                                    31 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This Page Intentionally Blank 























 Finance Commission 
Agenda Report 
 

 
DATE:  March 25, 2021 
 
FROM:  Elaine Aguilar, Interim Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion Regarding Fiscal Year 2021 and 2022 Annual Budget 
 
 
Recommendation  
It is recommended that the Finance Commission receive this update, and provide preliminary 
direction, if desired.   
 
Discussion/Analysis 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Commission with an update regarding the FY 2021 
Budget and to begin discussion of the FY 2022 Budget.   
 
FY 2021 Budget 
The Commission has reviewed and authorized the FY 2021 Budget to be forwarded to the City 
Council.  However, due to technological difficulties, the streaming of the March 17, 2021 
Council meeting ceased as the budget was being presented.  The City Council meeting was 
adjourned before the Council could adopt the FY 2021 Budget.  The budget will be on the April 
7th Council agenda for consideration.   
 
FY 2022 Budget 
The anticipated schedule for the FY 2022 Budget that covers the period of July 1, 2021 to June 
30, 2022 is shown below: 



Preliminary Budget Discussion 
March 25, 2021 
Page 2 

• April 7, 2021 – Report to City Council seeking preliminary direction.
• April 8 to May 30 – Budget preparation

    https://www.southpasadenaca.gov/government/departments/finance
• Early June – Budget review by the Commission
• Late June to Early July – Budget adoption by the City Council

Staff is working diligently to get the budget and audit back on track.  The FY 2020 Audit is 
currently underway, and work is about to begin on the FY 2022 Annual Budget.  

One of the preliminary steps involves in the budget process is public input.  The schedule is 
tight, but it is still possible to seek input from the public before the budget is finalized.   It would 
be helpful for the City Council to receive input from the Commission regarding the public input 
process.   

Basically, staff has identified 3 options for public input: 
1. A scheduled one time, public input meeting, where the public would participate via

zoom, or could email their comments to a special city email for public input regarding the
budget.   Staff would provide a presentation regarding resources (revenues) and expenses
(city operations, departments, overhead expenses, etc.)  There could be a prepared set of
questions seeking input, or there could be no pre-prepared questions.

2. A fully online public input process, similar to the one originally conducted for the FY
2021 Budget process.  This online process is still on the City’s Finance Department page
and can be accessed here:

3. Obtaining public input at Council meetings, on an ongoing basis, as the budget is being
prepared.  For example, there could be an initial Council meeting where city revenues are
presented.  At a second Council meeting, departments could make presentations
regarding their operations, and a third Council meeting could review capital improvement
projects.  Followed by a final Council meeting where the results of input from the
previous three meetings are summarized.  At the fifth meeting, the budget could be
presented.  (But would first go to the Commission.)

While public input is being received, staff would continue to work on developing revenue and 
expenditure estimates.  This is a significant undertaking, involving the City Manager and all city 
staff.  Pursuant to the Municipal Code, the City Manager’s is responsible for ensuring that the 
proposed city budget is prepared and submitted to the City Council.   

One of the frequently asked questions is, “When will city operations “return to normal?”.  At this 
time, it is impossible to know when things will return to pre-pandemic operations, and things 
may never return completely to normal, but staff, directed by the City Manager will be spending 
some time planning a gradual reopening, as laws and personal safety allow.  As the Commission 
is aware, all city operations were impacted in one way or another.  Some incurred additional 
costs due to the cost of PPE’s and sanitation, and other supplies. While other departments, such 
as Community Services experienced a steep decline in services levels, as the “stay at home 

https://www.southpasadenaca.gov/government/departments/finance


Preliminary Budget Discussion 
March 25, 2021  
Page 3 
 
orders” were implemented and special events, classes, and summer camp were put on hold.   It 
would be appropriate, if the Commission has any thoughts in this area to share them with staff, 
so that the Council can be informed of the Commission’s discussion.   
 
Background 
Now that the FY 2021 Budget is complete, it is time to begin working on the FY 2022 Annual 
Budget, that covers the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022.   

This staff report identifies a few areas where staff is currently seeking Commission input 
regarding the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget process.  This is an ongoing process and staff will return 
periodically to the Commission.  Staff will be including the Commission’s input in the report that 
will go to the City Council at their April 7th meeting.   

Fiscal Impact 
This item allows the Finance Commission to comment on the development of the Fiscal Year 
2022 Budget.  There is no direct fiscal impact at this time, other than staff time preparing the 
report.  
 
 
 
Public Notification of Agenda Item 
The public was made aware that this item was to be considered this evening by virtue of its 
inclusion on the legally publicly noticed agenda, posting of the same agenda and reports on the 
City’s website and/or notice in the South Pasadena Review and/or the Pasadena Star-News.  
 



Finance Commission 
Agenda Report 

DATE: March 25, 2021 

FROM: Elaine Aguilar, Interim Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT: Financial Sustainability Plan Update  

Recommendation  
It is recommended that the Finance Commission receive and file this update. 

Discussion/Analysis 
One of the items on the Commission’s work plan for the past two years has been an update 
regarding the City’s Financial Sustainability Plan.  It was apparent that this plan has not been 
before the Commission for a period of time, so it is staff’s intent to “get current” with this work 
plan item.   

The city’s Long-Term Financial Sustainability Plan was approved by the City Council in June 
2019.  A copy of the June 19. 2019 staff report is attached.  It appears that the Finance 
Commission was involved in the preparation of the plan.   

The July 2019 staff report provides insightful information about city revenues and expenditures. 
In some areas progress has been made.  Below is a summary of the report’s recommendations:  

Revenues 
• Utility Users Tax – The June 2019 staff report was prepared before the UUT extension

was considered by the voters in 2020.  As the Commission is aware, South Pasadena
voters approved an extension of the UUT.  Similar to 2019, it should be mentioned that
while in some aspects the UUT is a “stable” revenue source, in other ways it is impacted
by changes in technology and consumer preferences.   Staff will be returning to the next
Commission meeting with an analysis of this revenue source.

• Sales Taxes – The June 2019 staff report looked to economic development and a local
sales tax measure (such as the recently approved ¾% sales tax increase), as a revenue
enhancement.  As the Commission is aware, South Pasadena voters ultimately approved
the ¾% sales tax increase, which for the current fiscal year is estimated to generate
approximately $2 million in additional sales tax revenue.   (The June 2019 staff report
estimated revenues of $1.5 million.)

• User Fees – The June 2019 staff report indicated that at that time, user fees had not been
increased in almost a decade.  The report indicates that the city was currently reviewing
all user fees.  As the Commission is aware, a user fee study was ultimately completed,



Financial Sustainability Plan Update  
March 25, 2021  
Page 2 
 

and the city has begun annually increasing user fees by the CPI.  User fees will be 
coming to the Commission in the near future.   

 
Expenses 
 

• Employee Compensation – When the June 2019 report was prepared, employee salaries 
had not been increased in two years, and only marginal increases in previous years.  The 
City was scheduled to begin contract negotiations with all labor groups for the period 
beginning July 2019.  As the Commission is aware, contract negotiations were 
completed, and the cost of salary increases are included in the city’s budgets.   

• State Pension Obligations – In the June 2019 report, it was mentioned that while the city 
offers the lowest possible pension formula, none the less, the city would bear the cost of 
increased payments to PERS over the next five years at least.  The report mentions that 
many cities are hiring independent actuarial consultants to better analyze future impacts 
and plan appropriate strategies.  The Commission has an item on its work plan to evaluate 
pre-payment alternatives.  The City Council is seeking the Commission’s 
recommendation on this matter.   

• Streets and Infrastructure – The June 2019 report indicates that there is a large unfunded 
need for the repair of streets and other city infrastructure.  The report indicates that 
funding will need to come from grants and the general fund.  However, much deferred 
maintenance remains.   

• Technology and Advancements – The June 2019 report identifies the need to invest in 
technology.  The city has embarked on a plan to upgrade internal technology, such as 
new servers, and a large investment has been made in the police department’s mobile 
digital technology.  However, much more needs to be done to keep up with advances.  
 

Other Efforts 
• Investment in Economic Development - Staff was reorganized to create a focus team to 

develop an economic development strategy.  The City’s strategic Plan includes items 
such as developing a branding/marketing plan, a parking management plan, a 
promotional video, and a permit streamlining guide; this project has not made significant 
progress.     

• Redevelopment of City Property – The June 2019 report, suggested pursuing the 
redevelopment of city properties, and would require issuing an RFP for public-private 
partnerships, and contracting with industry expertise to evaluate proposals; this project 
has not made significant progress.   

• Hotel Development – The June 2019 plan suggests working on a project that would be 
compatible with South Pasadena’s historic, walkable character; this project has not made 
significant progress. 
    

 
Fiscal Impact 
The recommended action is for the Finance Commission to receive and file this report.  There is 
no direct fiscal impact at this time, other than staff time preparing the report.  



Financial Sustainability Plan Update  
March 25, 2021  
Page 3 
 
 
 
 
Public Notification of Agenda Item 
The public was made aware that this item was to be considered this evening by virtue of its 
inclusion on the legally publicly noticed agenda, posting of the same agenda and reports on the 
City’s website and/or notice in the South Pasadena Review and/or the Pasadena Star-News.  
 
 
Attachment 
June 19, 2019 Staff Report – Adoption of Long-Term Financial Sustainability Strategy 
 
 























1 
 

City of South Pasadena Finance Commission 
Minutes for Special Meeting of: 
March 4, 2021 6:30 P.M. 
 
Broadcast via ZOOM conference call. 
 

I. Roll Call Commission Chair Findley – Present  
Commission Vice-Chair Tao – Present 
Commissioner Choi – Present 
Commissioner Elsner – Present  
Commissioner Wood – Present  
City Treasurer Pia – Present 
City Council Liaison Donovan – Present 
Interim Assistant City Manager Aguilar – Present 
Finance Manager Trinh - Present 
Accounting Manager Trashian - Present 
 

II. Public Comment - None 
 

III. Action/Discussion 
IV. Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget & CIP 

i. Motion by Commissioner Elsner to approve FY2020-2021 Budget & CIP Draft 
Budget for Council Review, Second by Commissioner Wood, Approved 5-0. 

V. Selection of the Chair and Vice Chair of the Finance Commission 
i. Nomination by Commissioner Choi to appoint Commissioner Elsner as Finance 

Commission Chair, Second by Commission Chair Findley, Approved 5-0 
ii. Nomination by Commissioner Elsner to appoint Commissioner Choi as Finance 

Commission Vice Chair, Second by Commission Chair Findley, Approved 5-0 
2. Report from the Finance Ad Hoc Committee 
3. Approval of Minutes from the January 28, 2021 Minutes 

i. Amendment by Commissioner Tao on Roll Call 
ii. Motion by Commissioner Wood to approve Minutes for the January 28, 2021 

Meeting, Second by Commissioner Elsner, Approved 5-0.  
VI. Communications  

1. City Council Liaison – Jack Donovan  
i. Update on Seven Patios Mixed-Use Residential and Commercial Project  

Next regular meeting – March 25, 2021 
 
Meeting Adjourned at 7:53 PM 
 
 
 


	Commission Agenda 3-25-21 - FINAL
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	ADJOURNMENT
	PUBLIC ACCESS TO AGENDA DOCUMENTS

	Staff Report 03.25.01 Fy 2021 Policy
	The first suggested policy for review is the city’s overall financial policy that is included in the City’s Budget document and adopted each time the City’s budget is adopted.  Staff recommends this policy be the first to be considered, because it “se...
	A copy of the City’s current Financial Policy as included in the Proposed FY 2021 Budget is attached.  Staff has also attached a copy of the Financial Policy for the City of Irvine, a large city, and the City of San Marino, a city more similar to Sout...
	This item is on the Commission’s agenda to allow time to develop an updated policy for the City Council as part of the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget process.  It is not envisioned that an updated policy will be created in a single meeting, but will take tim...

	FY 2021 Financial Policy
	FY 2020/2021 Financial Policies
	1. BALANCED BUDGET
	We will strive to maintain a balanced operating budget for all governmental funds (all funds except the enterprise funds), with total on-going revenues equal to or greater than total on-going expenditure, so that at year end all these funds have a pos...
	2. APPROPRIATIONS AND BUDGETARY CONTROL


	3. ENTERPRISE FUND
	We will require that our water, sewer, and golf course funds be self-supporting.

	4. GENERAL FUND RESERVE
	We will strive to attain a General Fund undesignated fund balance equal to 30% of General Fund revenues at year end.

	5. GENERAL FUND DESIGNATED RESERVE
	o Slater Reimbursement Reserve; $345,876
	o Vehicle Replacement Reserve $100,000
	o SR-100 Interchange Project $1,410,000
	Staff will be seeking the City Council’s direction regarding the one-time cell tower revenues in the amount of $4,374,439 which is currently in undesignated reserves.
	6. INFRASTRUCTURE
	We will maintain a long-range fiscal perspective through the use of a Capital Improvement Program to maintain the quality of City infrastructure, including streets, sidewalks, sewers, drains, lighting, buildings, parks, and trees.

	7. ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS
	We will comply with all requirements of generally accepted accounting principles. We will publish a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles, prepared in coordination with our independent...

	8. RISK MANAGEMENT
	We will identify and quantify all areas of financial and operating risk, and prepare contingencies for those risks, including legal liabilities, infrastructure maintenance, emergency response, and contract and employee obligations. We will work with o...

	9. DEBT AND INVESTMENTS
	We will consider the use of debt when the cost of debt is lower than the City’s investment return, and when operating revenues are available to pay the debt. We will maximize the investment return on City Cash balances within the higher concerns of sa...

	All financial assets will be under the direct authority of the City Treasurer and Finance Director.
	11. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
	We will seek to realize the maximum use of all tax dollars to public benefit.


	Irvine Financial Policies
	San Marino Financial Policies
	R-18-08 Citywide Financial Policies_signed
	Commission Agenda 3-25-21 - FINAL.pdf
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	ADJOURNMENT
	PUBLIC ACCESS TO AGENDA DOCUMENTS

	Staff Report 03.25.01 Fy 2021 Budget.pdf
	 April 7, 2021 – Report to City Council seeking preliminary direction.
	 April 8 to May 30 – Budget preparation
	o https://www.southpasadenaca.gov/government/departments/finance
	 Early June – Budget review by the Commission
	 Late June to Early July – Budget adoption by the City Council
	Staff is working diligently to get the budget and audit back on track.  The FY 2020 Audit is currently underway, and work is about to begin on the FY 2022 Annual Budget.
	One of the preliminary steps involves in the budget process is public input.  The schedule is tight, but it is still possible to seek input from the public before the budget is finalized.   It would be helpful for the City Council to receive input fro...
	Basically, staff has identified 3 options for public input:
	1. A scheduled one time, public input meeting, where the public would participate via zoom, or could email their comments to a special city email for public input regarding the budget.   Staff would provide a presentation regarding resources (revenues...
	2. A fully online public input process, similar to the one originally conducted for the FY 2021 Budget process.  This online process is still on the City’s Finance Department page and can be accessed here:
	3. Obtaining public input at Council meetings, on an ongoing basis, as the budget is being prepared.  For example, there could be an initial Council meeting where city revenues are presented.  At a second Council meeting, departments could make presen...


